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On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Wai Chun Mining Industry Group Company Limited (the “Company”).
| would like to present the audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Performance

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$464,807,000 from
operations (2015: approximately HK$376,808,000), representing an increase of approximately 23.4% as compared
to that of 2015. The Group recorded a gross profit and gross profit margin of approximately HK$12,156,000 (2015:
approximately HK$1,823,000) and 2.6% (2015: 0.5%) respectively, representing increase of approximately 566.8% and
420.0% respectively as compared to 2015.

Administrative expenses increased by 157.4% from approximately HK$16,902,000 in 2015 to approximately
HK$43,502,000 in current year. Such increase is mainly due to share-based payment expenses of approximately
HK$23,228,000 recognised for the 699,639,467 share options granted under the Company’s share option scheme
on 12 January 2016. Selling expenses recorded an increase of 68.8% from approximately HK$3,424,000 in 2015 to
approximately HK$5,778,000 in current year.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year amounted to approximately HK$39,169,000 (2015:
approximately HK$19,596,000). The increase in the loss was mainly due to (i) the share based payment expenses
of approximately HK$23,228,000; (i) an impairment loss on trade and bills receivables totaling HK$1,942,000 in the
modified starch and other biochemical products business and (i) an impairment loss on deposits, prepayments and
other receivables of approximately HK$1,451,000.

Modified starch and other biochemical products business

As a result of higher selling prices and market demand in the PRC during the year, the performance of the modified
starch and other biochemical products business have improved when compared to that of 2015, which contributed
approximately HK$429,254,000 (2015: approximately HK$292,808,000) and approximately HK$4,743,000 (2015:
approximately HK$10,039,000) to the Group’s turnover and segment loss respectively, representing an increase of
approximately 46.6% in turnover but a narrowing of approximately 52.8% in segment loss when compared to that of
2015.

Footwear business

The footwear business recorded a revenue of approximately HK$755,000 (2015: approximately HK$6,396,000) and a
segment loss of approximately HK$6,131,000 in 2016 (2015: approximately HK$5,361,000) respectively, representing a
decrease in the turnover of approximately HK$5,641,000 and an increase in segment loss of approximately HK$770,000
respectively when compared to 2015.

General trading business

The general trading business recorded a revenue of approximately HK$34,798,000 (2015: approximately
HK$77,604,000) and a segment profit of approximately HK$128,000 in 2016 (2015: approximately HK$343,000)
respectively.
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Financial Resources and Position

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net current liabilities of approximately HK$63,001,000 (2015: approximately
HK$60,728,000) and cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$6,464,000 (2015: approximately HK$10,605,000).
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi and United States
Dollars. As at 31 December 2016, the current ratio of the Group was approximately 0.57 times (2015: approximately
0.57 times).

Total debts of the Group amounted to approximately HK$85,464,000 (2015: approximately HK$97,023,000), comprising
borrowings of approximately HK$55,854,000 (2015: approximately HK$53,846,000), loans from the ultimate holding
company of approximately HK$15,049,000 (2015: approximately HK$26,849,000) and amounts due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of approximately HK$14,561,000 (2015: approximately HK$16,328,000). All the above-
mentioned borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi. All of these borrowings are interest bearing
at prevailing market interest rates. The net debts (net of cash and cash equivalents) to total assets ratio of the Group
is approximately 53.4% (2015: approximately 58.0%), representing a decrease of approximately 4.6% as compared to
2015.

The Group had future minimum lease payments under a non-cancellable operating lease in respect of rented premises
amounting to approximately HK$2,657,000 (2015: approximately HK$5,845,000). On the basis of the undrawn loan
facilities of approximately HK$110,112,000, granted by its ultimate holding company, Oriental Success Ventures Ltd
(“Oriental Success”), which will be provided on a subordinated basis, the Directors believe that the Group has sufficient
financial resources for its operations. The Directors will remain cautious in the Group’s liquidity management.

Foreign Currency Fluctuation

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group conducted its business transactions principally in Renminbi and
US dollars. The Group has not experienced any material difficulties or negative impact on its operations as a result of
fluctuations in currency exchange rates. Accordingly, the Directors considered that the foreign exchange exposure is
relatively limited and no hedging of exchange risk is required. As an internal policy, the Group continues to implement
a prudent policy on financial management policy and does not participate in any high risk speculative activities.
Nevertheless, the management will continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure and will take prudent measures
when needed.

Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had not provided any financial guarantee and did not have any material contingent
liabilities. As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s prepaid land lease payments with carrying amount of approximately
HK$18,554,000 (2015: approximately HK$21,345,000) were pledged to secure the bank borrowings. As at 31
December 2016, no bank deposits (2015: HK$Nil) have been pledged to secure the bank loans and banking facilities
granted to the Group.
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Dividend
The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

During the year under review, the Group continued to engage in the manufacture and sale of modified starch and other
biochemical products; the trading of athletic and athletic-style leisure footwear, working shoes, safety shoes, golf shoes
and other functional shoes; and general trading.

The business of manufacture and sales of modified starch, and other biochemical products recorded segment loss of
approximately HK$4,743,000 (2015: approximately HK$10,039,000). Such a reduction in loss was a result of higher
selling prices and market demand in the PRC during the year. The footwear business, which continued to be hampered
by low consumer spending and keen competition, recorded segment loss of approximately HK$6,131,000 (2015:
approximately HK$5,361,000), whereas the business of general trading recorded segment profit of approximately
HK$128,000 during the period (2015: approximately HK$343,000).

During the year under review, the Company has enlarged the capital base by issuing convertible preference shares and
actively identified projects with growth potential for acquisition or investment by entering into a conditional sales and
purchase agreement for a proposed acquisition.

On 22 January 2016, the Company and Chinese Success Limited (the controlling shareholder of the Company which
is in turn wholly owned by Wai Chun Investment Fund, the “Subscriber”) entered into a subscription agreement
whereby the Subscriber agreed to subscribe for, and the Company agreed to issue and allot, 536,960,000 convertible
preference shares (“Convertible Preference Shares”) at the issue price of HK$0.05 per convertible preference share for
capitalising the loan from the ultimate holding company (the “Shareholder’s Loan) (“‘Loan Capitalisation”) in the amount of
HK$26,848,000.

By entering into the subscription agreement, the Company settled the Shareholder’s Loan without affecting the working
capital of the Company. Upon issue of the Convertible Preference Shares, the Shareholder’s Loan was derecognised
as the liability of the Company and the Convertible Preference Shares was recognised wholly as equity of the Company
which in turn reduce the gearing ratio, enlarge the capital base and enhance the net asset position of the Company. In
addition, the Company also saves the interest expenses arising from the Shareholder’s Loan. The Loan Capitalisation
was approved by the Company’s shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held on 8 April 2016.

WAI CHUN MINING INDUSTRY GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2016

5



6

Moreover, on 18 May 2016, the Company entered into a conditional sales and purchase agreement (the “S&P
Agreement”) with Wai Chun Investment Fund (the former controlling shareholder of the Company, the “Vendor”) pursuant
to which the Company has agreed to purchase and the Vendor has agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of
Oceanic Chief Limited (the “Target Company”) and shareholder’s loan (if any), for an aggregate consideration of HK$650
million (subject to valuation) and shall be satisfied by way of issuing of 13,000 million convertible preference shares of
the Company (the “Proposed Acquisition”). The Target Company and its subsidiaries (the “Target Group”) were granted
an exclusive right in the license period of five years (the “License Period”) to display the replica of the artwork and
models of a world famous artist in new, modern and innovative methods to introduce the world famous artist and offer a
complete multidisciplinary experience of introducing his life (the “Exhibition”). The equipment and the materials required
for the Exhibition will be provided by the licensor. The Exhibition will be held in the PRC and it is also allowed to be held
in Hong Kong and Macau. The Target Group will pay an annual license fee to the licensor during the License Period
and is entitled to all sale proceeds of the tickets sold during the License Period. By investing in the Target Company,
it is expected that the Company can diversify its revenue sources from the ticket sales and the sales of the exhibition
merchandise and expand the business of the Group to the cultural industry. The Proposed Acquisition constitutes a
major and connected transaction of the Company and is subject to independent shareholders’ approval at a general
meeting of the Company. More details of the Proposed Acquisition can be found on the announcements of the Company
dated 18 May 2016, 8 June 2016, 29 June 2016, 29 July 2016, 29 August 2016, 29 September 2016, 28 October 2016
and 30 December 2016.

Looking forward, the Company will continue to actively identifying projects with growth potential for acquisition or
investment.

Lam Ching Kui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lam Ching Kui (“Mr. Lam”), aged 58, has over 25 years of experience in project investments and securities
investments. Mr. Lam has been engaged in industrial and residential property development in the PRC and commercial
property investment in Hong Kong. He has made investments in listed securities and renewable energy. Mr. Lam is an
indirect substantial shareholder of the Company and has been the Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company
since December 2007. Mr. Lam is responsible for the overall strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Lam is also the
chairman and an executive director of Wai Chun Group Holdings Limited (“Wai Chun Group”), a public listed company in
Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Tony Chan Chun Wai (“Mr. Chan”), aged 45, is a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) of the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants and a member of CPA Australia. He is a director in a CPA practice. He has extensive
experience in audit assurance and business advisory services with clients operating in a variety of industries in both Hong
Kong and the PRC. Moreover, Mr. Chan also has extensive experience in public listings in Hong Kong and Singapore,
mergers and acquisition as well as corporate finance. Before commencing his own practice, Mr. Chan has worked in
major international accounting firms and a listed company. Mr. Chan is an independent non-executive director of Hans
Energy Company Limited and Honbridge Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Chan has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
May 2007 .

Mr. Hau Pak Man (“Mr. Hau”), aged 73, a Hong Kong permanent resident, graduated from Beijing University of
Technology in 1966 and obtained a Bachelor degree in Electrical Engineering. He has extensive working experiences
in electrical engineering and information technology. Mr. Hau is currently a member of the National Committee of the
Chinese Peoples Political Consultative Conference, a member of the Committee for Liaise with Hong Kong, Macao,
Taiwan and Overseas Chinese and a member of Selection Meeting for Representatives of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of The Twelve National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China ({2 A R £ FE &S
BRITHESE T —EERARKEASRERELESEME). Mr. Hau has been an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company since November 2012.

Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond (“Mr. To”), aged 45, holds a bachelor degree in Commerce in Accounting from Curtin
University of Technology in Western Australia. He is a Certified Public Accountant practicing in Hong Kong and a director
of Edmond To CPA Limited, Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited (formerly known as Zhonglei (HK) CPA Company Limited)
and R.C.W. (HK) CPA Limited. He was formerly a director of Fortitude CPA Limited. He is a member of both the CPA
Australia and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He worked for one of the international accounting
firms, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and has extensive experience in auditing, accounting, floatation and taxation matters.

Mr. To was previously an independent non-executive director of China Household Holdings Limited and Theme
International Holdings Limited, companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of Courage Marine Group Limited, Birmingham International Holdings Limited, EPI
(Holdings) Limited, SH Group (Holdings) Limited, Tianli Holdings Group Limited and Wai Chun Group Holdings Limited,
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director of China
Vanguard Group Limited and Asia Grocery Distribution Limited, companies listed on the GEM Board of the Stock
Exchange. He has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since August 2013.
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The Directors of the Company submit their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The Company acts as an investment holding and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Discussions and reviews of the Group’s business and possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are
contained in the Chairman’s Statement as set out on pages 3 to 6 of this annual report. The financial risk management
objectives and policies of the Group are shown in note 7(b) to the financial statements of this annual report. These
discussions form part of this report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 105.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant, and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in notes 30 and 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity set out on page 42 and note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company did not have any reserves available for distribution to its shareholders (2015: Nil).

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the five financial years ended 31
December 2016 is set out on page 106 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Director
Mr. Lam Ching Kui (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony

Mr. Hau Pak Man

Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond
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The biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out on page 7 of this annual report.

In accordance with Article 99 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Hau Pak Man and Mr. To Yan Ming,
Edmond, shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company (“AGM”) and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). The Company, based on such confirmations, considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of not more than
three years commencing from their date of appointment, which continues thereafter until terminated by either party giving
not less than one month notice in writing to the other party.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of
two years from their date of appointment, which can be terminated by either party giving not less than one month notice
in writing to the other party. Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors is subject to the provisions for retirement
by rotation and re-election at the AGM in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has service agreement with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at the AGM. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s Board of Directors with reference to the recommendations from the Remuneration Committee taking into
account the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified by the
Company out of the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities which he may
sustain or incur or about the execution and discharge of his duties or in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed below in the section headed “Connected Transactions” and in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, there are no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to which the Company’s holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or a connected entity of a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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Report of the Directors

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors had any interests in any business (apart from the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules, during the year
and up to the date of this report.

INTERESTS OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed below in the section headed “Connected Transactions” and in notes 29, 31 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements, there was no contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and a controlling shareholder (as defined in paragraph 16 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries,
at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of, its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), which were required pursuant to: (a) divisions 7 to 9 of Part XV of the SFO, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange; (b) section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long Positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each

Number of Approximate

shares/ percentage of

Long position/ underlying issued share

Name of Shareholder Capacity Short position share held capital

Mr. Lam Ching Kui Interests of controlled Long Position 21,115,024,320 129.77%
corporations (Note)

Note: Mr. Lam Ching Kui is the beneficial owner of Oriental Success Ventures Limited which is deemed to be
interested in 7,578,064,320 shares and 13,536,960,000 convertible preference shares of the Company, of which
7,578,064,320 shares and 536,960,000 convertible preference shares of the Company are held by Chinese
Success Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Oriental Success Ventures Limited.

Other than disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed below in the section headed “Connected Transactions”, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors, or any
of their spouses or children under the age of 18, was granted any right to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the
Company, nor had exercised any such right.
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Report of the Directors

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of Directors, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of the Company:

Long Positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each
Approximate

Number of percentage of

shares/underlying issued share

Name of Shareholder Capacity share held capital

Oriental Success Ventures Limited Interests of controlled corporations 8,115,024,320 49.87%
(Note 1)

Other (Note 2) 13,000,000,000 79.89%

Chinese Success Limited (Note 1)  Beneficial owner 8,115,024,320 49.87%

Onward Global Investments Beneficial owner 1,286,350,000 7.91%

Limited (Note 3)
Wan Yuzhen (Note 3) Interests of controlled corporations 1,286,350,000 7.91%

Spring Garden Investments Beneficial owner 1,286,400,000 7.91%
Limited (Note 4)

Zhong Liyan (Note 4) Interests of controlled corporations 1,286,400,000 7.91%
Notes:

(1) Chinese Success Limited, which is wholly owned by Oriental Success Ventures Limited, holds (i) 7,578,064,320 shares of the
Company and (i) 536,960,000 convertible preference shares of the Company, which is convertible to 536,960,000 shares of the
Company. Mr. Lam Ching Kui, the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company, is the beneficial owner of the entire issued
share capital of Oriental Success Ventures Limited. Mr. Lam Ching Kui is the director of Chinese Success Limited and Oriental
Success Ventures Limited.

2) After having entered into a sales and purchase agreement between Wai Chun Investment Fund and the Company on 18 May
2016, and the transfer of Wai Chun Investment Fund’s entire issued share capital in Chinese Success Limited to Oriental Success
Ventures Limited on 2 November 2016, Oriental Success Ventures Limited is deemed to be interested in 13,000,000,000
convertible preference shares of the Company, which is convertible into 13,000,000,000 issued shares. Details of the sales and
purchase agreement and the transfer of the entire issued share capital are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
18 May 2016 and 6 December 2016.

) These 1,286,350,000 shares of the Company were held by Onward Global which is wholly-owned by Wan Yuzhen. For the
purpose of SFO, Wan Yuzhen is deemed to be interested in these 1,286,350,000 shares held by Onward Global.

(4)  These 1,286,400,000 shares of the Company were held by Spring Garden which is wholly-owned by Zhong Liyan. For the
purpose of SFO, Zhong Liyan is deemed to be interested in these 1,286,400,000 shares held by Spring Garden.
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Save for the shareholders as disclosed herein, the Directors and the chief executive of the Company are not aware
of any persons who, as at 31 December 2016, were entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5% or more of the
voting power at general meetings of the Company and were also, as a practicable matter, able to direct or influence the
management of the Company.

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES IN THE COMPANY
As at 31 December 2016, the Company had not been notified of any short positions being held by any substantial

shareholder in the shares or underlying shares of the Company.

OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had not been notified of any interests or short positions being held by any
person (other than the Directors and chief executives and the substantial shareholders as disclosed above) in the share
capital of the Company that was required to be disclosed under Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and the Listing
Rules.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Convertible Preferences Shares

On 22 January 2016, the Company and Chinese Success Limited (the controlling shareholder of the Company which
is in turn wholly owned by Wai Chun Investment Fund, the “Subscriber”) entered into a subscription agreement
whereby the Subscriber agreed to subscribe for, and the Company agreed to issue and allot, 536,960,000 convertible
preference shares (“Convertible Preference Shares”) at the issue price of HK$0.05 per convertible preference share for
capitalising the loan from Wai Chun Investment Fund (the “Shareholder’s Loan”) (“Loan Capitalisation”) in the amount
of HK$26,848,000. The Loan Capitalisation was approved by the Company’s shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 8 April 2016 and 536,960,000 Convertible Preference Shares were issued and allotted to Chinese
Success Limited accordingly.

Details of the convertible preference shares are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 22 July 2015 (“Share Option Scheme”) in view of the lapse
of old share option scheme adopted by the Company on 10 June 2003. Particulars of the Share Option Scheme and
detail of share options granted under the Share Option Scheme during the financial year are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Particulars of the retirement benefits scheme of the Group are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year under review, no management and administrative contracts regarding the entire or any major businesses
of the Company have been entered into or have existed.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
All directors have confirmed, following specific enquiries by the Company that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Loan Capitalisation

On 22 January 2016, the Company and Chinese Success Limited (the controlling shareholder of the Company) entered
into a subscription agreement whereby the Company agreed to issue 536,960,000 convertible preference shares at the
issue price of HK$0.05 per convertible preference share to Chinese Success Limited for the settlement of loans from
ultimate holding company approximately HK$26,848,000 as at 31 December 2015. More details of the transaction were
disclosed in the announcement dated 22 January 2016.

Proposed Acquisition of Oceanic Chief Limited

On 18 May 2016, the Company entered into a conditional sales and purchase agreement with Wai Chun Investment
Fund (the controlling shareholder of the Company, the “Vendor”) pursuant to which the Company has agreed to
purchase and the Vendor has agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of Oceanic Chief Limited and shareholder’s
loan (if any), for an aggregate consideration of HK$650 million (subject to valuation) and shall be satisfied by way of
issuing of 13,000 million convertible preference shares of the Company. More details of the Proposed Acquisition can be
found on the announcements of the Company dated 18 May 2016.

Continuing Connected Transaction

A tenancy agreement was entered into between Wai Chun Holdings Group Limited as landlord and Wai Chun
Incorporation Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as tenant on 23 October 2013 in relation to the left
portion of 13/F, Admiralty Centre, Tower Il, 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, the principal place of business in Hong Kong
for a term of two years commencing from 1 November 2015 to 31 October 2017, both days inclusive, with a rental
of HK$265,675 per calendar month (equivalent to HK$3,188,100 per annum), exclusive of management fee, rates,
government rent, utilities charges and all other outgoing charges per calendar month.

Wai Chun Holdings Group Limited is owned as to 50% by Mr. Lam Ching Kui and as to the remaining 50% by Ms. Chan
Oi Mo. Mr. Lam Ching Kui is a controlling shareholder of the Company and is interested in approximately 46.57% of the
issued share capital of the Company and Ms. Chan Oi Mo is the spouse of Mr. Lam Ching Kui. Accordingly, Wai Chun
Holdings Group Limited is regarded as a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Therefore, the
tenancy agreement constitutes a continuing connected transaction for the Company under Rule 14A.14 of the Listing
Rules.

The aggregate rental payable under the tenancy agreement per annum, being HK$3,188,100, represents less than 5%
of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the Listing Rules) for the Company on an annual basis. Accordingly,
pursuant to Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules, the tenancy agreement is subject to reporting, announcement and annual

review requirements but no approval of independent shareholders of the Company is required.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the above continuing connected transaction and in their opinion, the transaction was made:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  on normal commercial terms; and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing it on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The Board has also confirmed that a letter pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules has been issued to the Board by
the auditor of the Company.

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Save as above disclosed in the “Connected Transactions” section and “Rental expenses” in the amount of
HK$3,188,000 for the year as shown in note 35 — “Related party transactions” to the consolidated financial statements
which constituted connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, all other transactions
as shown in note 35 are connected transactions exempted from announcement, reporting, annual review and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the above connected
transactions.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 60% of total turnover and sales to
the largest customer accounted for approximately 24%. The five largest suppliers of the Group in aggregate accounted
for about 70% of its operating costs for the year. Purchases from the largest supplier accounted for about 56% of its
operating costs. None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholder (who to the knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association of the Company, or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to shareholders by reason of their holding of
Company Securities.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 150 employees, the majority of whom are situated in the PRC. In

addition to offer competitive remuneration packages to employees, discretionary bonuses and share options may also be
granted to eligible employees based on individual performance.

The Group also encourages its employees to pursue a balanced life and provides a good working environment for its
employees to maximise their potential and contribution to the Group.

The remuneration committee of the Company, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance

and comparable market statistics, decides the emoluments of the Directors. No Director, or any of his associates, and
executive, is involved in dealing his own remuneration.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Details of the environmental, social and governance of the Group are set out in the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Board considers compliance with laws and regulations an important element in the business operation of the Group.
The Group’s major production facilities and over half of its sales are located in China and compliance with domestic laws
and regulations in China is particularly important. The Group has specific personnel to handle and update compliance
works in China and they also have the assistance from external legal advisors. The Board considers that the Group’s
compliance with laws and regulations in China is well monitored.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group provides a harmonious and professional working environment to employees and ensures they all are
reasonable remunerated. The Company regular reviews and updates its policies on remuneration and benefits, training,
occupational health and safety.

The Group also recognises that it is important to maintain good relationship with business partners to achieve its long-
term goals. During the year, there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and its business partners.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in
this annual report.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 were audited by HLM CPA Limited who will
retire and seek for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Ching Kui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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The Directors and other members of the management team of the Company are dedicated to maintain high standards
of corporate governance. They will continue to exercise leadership, enterprise, integrity and judgement so as to
achieve continuing prosperity and to act in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders in a transparent and
responsible manner. Strategic development with prudence and adherence to ethical principles form the cores of the
Company’s corporate governance practices.

The Company continues to devote efforts on promoting good corporate governance so as to ensure its ability to attract
investment, protect the rights of shareholders and stakeholders, and enhance shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code on corporate governance practices. The Company has taken various
measures to cope with the latest development in the corporate governance regime.

The Company complied with the code provisions as set out in the Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2016
except that under code provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. The Company does not at present separate the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer. Mr. Lam Ching Kui is the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. He has
extensive experience in project management and securities investments and is responsible for the overall corporate
strategies, planning and business development of the Group. The balance of power and authorities is ensured by the
operation of the Board which comprised of experienced and high caliber individuals with sufficient number thereof being
independent non-executive directors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board
As at the date of this annual report, the composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Lam Ching Kui (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony

Mr. Hau Pak Man

Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond
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Responsibilities

The Board has a balance of skill and experience and a balanced composition of Executive and Non-executive Directors
and is responsible for oversight of the management of the Company’s business and affairs. The Board has delegated the
day-to-day responsibility to the Executive Director(s) and senior management of the Company.

The Board, led by the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, is responsible for formulation and approval of the
Group’s development, business strategies, policies, annual budgets and business plans, recommendation of any
dividend and supervision of management.

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues brought up at
Board meetings and receive adequate and reliable information in relation to matters discussed at Board meetings and
also other affairs of the Group on a timely basis.

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is responsible for day-to-day management of the Company’s operations,
financial management and the effective implementation of the overall strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.

The Company considers that internal control system and risk management function are essential, and the Board plays an
important role in implementing and monitoring internal control system and risk management function.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one Independent Non-executive Director

possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.

In the course of discharging their duties, the Directors act in good faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders. Their responsibilities include:

o attending regular Board meetings focusing on business strategy, operational issues and financial performance;
° active participation on the boards of subsidiaries and associated companies;

° approval of annual budgets for each operating company covering strategy, financial and business performance,
key risks and opportunities;

° monitoring the quality, timeliness, relevance and reliability of internal and external reporting;
° monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of the Board, senior management and shareholders;
o consideration of misuse of corporate assets and abuse in related party transactions; and

o ensuring processes are in place to maintain the overall integrity of the Company, including financial statements,
relationships with suppliers, customers and other stakeholders, and compliance with all laws and ethics.

To enable the Directors to meet their obligations, an appropriate organisational structure is in place with clearly defined
responsibilities and limits of authority.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The appointment of all the Directors, including Independent Non-executive Directors, is for a specific term of not
more than three years from date of appointment. The Company’s Articles of Association provides for the retirement of
Directors by rotation and any new director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting following the appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of directors are set out in the Company’s Articles
of Association. The Board is responsible for the reviewing its composition, monitoring the appointment of directors and
assessing the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

Board Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board held four regular board meetings. In addition, board meetings
are convened when necessary to deal with everyday matters that require the Board’s prompt decision, and are usually
attended by Executive Directors only. The Directors attended the meetings in person or through electronic means of
communication. The attendance of each Director is set out as follows:

Number of meetings

Name of Directors attended/held
Mr. Lam Ching Kui 4/4
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony 4/4
Mr. Hau Pak Man 4/4
Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond 4/4

General Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2016, an annual general meeting and an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company were held on 30 June 2016 and 8 April 2016 respectively. The attendance of each Director is set out as
follows:

Number of meetings

Name of Directors attended/held
Mr. Lam Ching Kui 2/2
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony 2/2
Mr. Hau Pak Man 1/2
Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond 1/2

Board Process

Directors are provided with relevant information to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director have separate
and independent access to the Company’s senior management for information and making enquires if necessary. In
addition, Directors may seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses.

Every Director is entitled to have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary with a view to ensure that
the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are complied with. All minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and are opened for inspections by any Director during normal office hours by giving reasonable advance
notice.
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[f a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter before the Board, the matter will be dealt
with in accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if appropriate, an independent board committee will be set
up to deal with the matter.

Directors’ Training
According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development by way of receiving in-house briefing, taking part
in training relating to the Listing Rules and corporate governance matters or attending seminars relating to their role as
a director of listed issuer. Each of the Directors has provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31
December 2016 to the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lam Ching Kui, the Chairman of the Company, was also appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
The Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in the same person has the benefit
of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for
the Group. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired
and is adequately ensured by current Board which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with sufficient
number thereof being Independent Non-executive Directors.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The three Independent Non-executive Directors are persons of high calibre, with academic and professional
qualifications in the fields of accounting or electrical engineering. With their experience gained from various sectors, they
provide strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board. Each Independent
Non-executive Director has given an annual confirmation of his independence to the Company, and the Company
considers each of them to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term of two years from their date of appointment.
Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has set up three committees of the Board, including the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company, with specific terms of reference relating to their authority and duties, which
strengthen the Board’s functions and enhance its expertise.
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Remuneration committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director and two Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Hau
Pak Man is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary function of the Remuneration Committee is to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management. The Company’s emolument policy is
to ensure that the remuneration offered to employees including Executive Directors and senior management is based
on the skills, knowledge, responsibilities and involvement in the Company’s affairs. The remuneration packages are
also determined by reference to the Company’s performance and profitability, remuneration level in the industry and
the prevailing market conditions. The emolument policy for Independent Non-executive Directors, mainly comprising
Directors’ fees, is subject to annual assessment with reference to the market standard. Individual Director and senior
management would not be involved in deciding their own remuneration.

The model of remuneration committee described in code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code has been adopted by the
Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting, with attendance record as
follows:

Number of meetings

Name of Directors attended/held
Mr. Hau Pak Man (Chairman) 11
Mr. Lam Ching Kui 1/1
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony 1/1

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed matters relating to remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management.

Audit committee

The Company has an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) which was established in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules for the purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. A meeting of the Audit Committee was held to review the Group’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, in conjunction with the Group’s external
auditor, HLM CPA Limited.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee held two meetings, with attendance record as follows:

Number of meetings

Name of Directors attended/held
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Hau Pak Man 2/2
Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond 2/2

WAI CHUN MINING INDUSTRY GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2016




Corporate Governance Report

At the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016
and the interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2016 respectively. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the
Group accounting principles and practices, Listing Rules and statutory compliance and financial reporting matters. The
Audit Committee is satisfied with their review of the independence of the auditor and their audit process for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

The Group’s results and consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 have been reviewed by
the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director and two Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Lam
Ching Kui is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to make recommendations to the Board on new appointment
and re-appointment of directors and senior management. New directors are sought mainly through referrals and
internal promotions. In evaluating whether an appointee is suitable to act as a Director, the Board will consider his/her
qualifications, experience, expertise and knowledge with reference to the Diversity Policy adopted by the Board during
the year and the requirements under the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee held one meeting, with attendance record as
follows:

Number of meetings

Name of Directors attended/held
Mr. Lam Ching Kui (Chairman) 11
Mr. Hau Pak Man 11
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony 1/1

Corporate Governance Functions
The Company’s corporate governance functions are carried out by the Board in compliance with the CG Code.

The corporate governance functions currently performed by the Board are to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance to comply with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory requirements;
to oversee the Company’s orientation program for new Director; to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and to review the Company’s disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate

governance, the training and continuous professional development of the Directors and senior management as well as
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the period from 16 November 2016 to 5 March 2017, the company secretary of the Company was vacant
subject to the Company’s selection process. Ms. Chu Kwan Yau Janice was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company on 6 March 2017 to support the board by ensuring good information flow within the board and the board
policy and procedures are followed, advising the board on governance matters, facilitating induction and professional
development of directors.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). The Company has made specific enquiries to all Directors and
all Directors have confirmed with the Company that they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model

Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions during the year.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND ITS REMUNERATION

HLM CPA Limited, the external auditor of the Company, shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of HLM CPA Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at
the forthcoming AGM.

HLM CPA Limited provided services in respect of the audit of Company’s consolidated financial statements which were
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) for the year ended 31 December
2016. HLM CPA Limited also reviewed the 2016 unaudited interim financial information of the Company, which was
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The total fees charged by HLM CPA Limited in respect of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2016
amounted to HK$500,000.

Description of non-audit services performed by HLM CPA Limited Fee Paid

HK$

Interim review of financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries 128,000
for the six months ended 30 June 2016

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN PREPARING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that their responsibilities for preparing the consolidated financial statements and ensuring
that the preparation of the accounts is in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The statement of the Auditors of the Company regarding their reporting responsibilities for the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 31 to 37 of this annual report.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on
an ongoing basis. Such risk management and internal control systems are designed for managing risks rather than
eliminating the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The objective is to cover all important controls, including financial, operational,
compliance, and risk management functions to endure they are in place and functioning effectively for the Group.

The successful management of risk is essential for the long term growth and sustainability of the Group’s business.
These can only be achievable if certain risks are managed effectively. Effective risk management and strong internal
controls are integral to the Group’s business model and are reflected in the risk management policy adopted within the
business.

Policy
The Group’s risk management policy includes the following elements:

° Identification of significant risks in the Group’s operation environment and evaluate the impacts of those;
° Develop necessary measure to manage those risks;

° Risk and mitigate measures with risk ownership will be documented in a risk register; and

° Risk register will be monitored and reviewed the effectiveness of such measures regularly.

The Board has delegated the Audit Committee to perform its responsibilities of risk management and internal control
systems by performing the following:

° Oversees the Group’s risk management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis;

° Reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems annually, and such review
should cover all material controls including financial, operational and compliance control;

° Considers major findings on risk management and internal control matters, implementation of the mitigation
activities by the management team, and reports and makes recommendations to the Board

Internal Audit
The Group’s internal audit function is performed by an outsourced internal audit team, which reports directly to the Audit
Committee of the Group.

The report provided internal audit findings and any action to be taken by management as a result. These findings
and recommendations for improvement will be communicated to the respective management for their responses and
corrective actions. The Group’s management team monitors the implementation of its recommendations reports the
outcome to the Audit Committee.

The Board considers the Group internal control system and risk management is adequate and effective for the financial
year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for communication between the shareholders and the
Board. An AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each
general meeting, other than an AGM, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting

Shareholders may convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company according to the provisions as set out in
the Articles of Association and the Companies Law of Cayman Islands. The procedures that shareholders can use to
convene an extraordinary general meeting are set out in Article 57 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by shareholders at shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request
the Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there was no significant change in the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association.
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This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (‘ESG Report”) is compiled in accordance with the guidelines laid
down in Appendix 27 Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“the Reporting Guide”) of the Listing
Rules.

The Group has 3 business operations. The main business is manufacturing and sale of modified starch and other
biomedical products. They together accounted respectively for over 90% of the Group’s total turnover and consolidated
asset value in the year ended 31 December 2016. General trading of electronic component parts and electrical
appliances and various types of shoes accounted for the remaining turnover and assets.

As of 31 December 2016, the Group has one factory in Shandong (“the Factory”) producing modified starch and
other biomedical products. The scope of this ESG Report mainly includes data and activities of the Factory and the
management headquarter in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2016. Key policies relating to areas covered
by this ESG Report could be summarised below:

1. The Group is committed to be a successful operator in our business operations, bringing returns to our investors
and supporters, giving a healthy and safe working environment to our employees, and helping to provide
sustainable developments for the local communities and the Group.

2. The Board has approved its updated strategies and policies which have incorporated the related environmental
and social issues contained in the Reporting Guide. The Board has assigned the various department heads to
implement its policies. Through their normal and routine channels, they report directly to the Group CEO, who has
the overall responsibility to ensure that the Board’s approved strategies and polices are implemented.

8 It is incumbent on the CEO and the management to examine and address all the environmental and social issues
spelt out in the aspects and areas in the reporting guide. They are duty bound to explore and develop Key
Performance Indicators (“KPIs”) where appropriate and necessary for future reference and action in line with the
Group policy and goals.

(A) ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

In order to develop a sustainable business, the Group undertakes initiatives to engage in conservation and to
promote and undertake environmental protection responsibilities. The Group takes an active role to ensure a
sustainable and environmentally-friendly production and operating processes by taking all practicable and possible
measures to comply with the relevant national & provincial laws. The Group actively assumes social responsibilities
to reduce pollution by setting objectives.

Emissions

There is a clear policy on the control of emission of air and effluent discharge and disposal of hazardous & non-
hazardous wastes from the Factory to the environment. The discharges are subjected to the constant inspection
and surveillance of the various government departments. There has been no breach or offence spotted by the
law enforcing departments on pollution control and emissions. The policy is subject to periodic review at different
management levels to cope with any areas warranting our attention and action.

Production wastes discharged from the manufacturing Factory are our major environmental pollution source which
could be considered to have a significant impact on our operation. All liquid wastes are collected and disposed
of by licensed contractors. Our performance on pollution control in these areas has not given rise to any serious
concern to the Group, the local community and public officials.
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The types of emissions and emission data of the Factory which are considered of significant impact to our
operations are identified and consolidated. They will be used as the baseline in formulating the KPI and in future
will be further examined in further details in conjunction with our overall production goals to explore all possible
reduction, recycle and reuse measures so as to formulate a practicable approach with achievable goals.

There are no greenhouse gas emissions from the Factory except the indirect gas emission of carbon dioxide (CO,)
as a result of electricity consumption.

All hazardous waste produced in the period were collected and disposed of by licensed contractors. No adverse
comments or irregularities have been reported from the internal and external control sources.

Non-hazardous wastes were taken care of by the local waste collector. Contemplations could be given to recycling
and reuse in the various processes and stage of production.

Use of Resources

The Group has recently adopted a policy on the efficient use of resources and has experience on the efficient use
of energy, water and other raw materials.

All levels of the Group are mindful of the importance of energy saving and its implications to the community and
the earth. Measures will be explored and implemented for more appropriate ways and means to reduce, reuse
and recycle all energy resources in conjunction with our production needs and goals. Educational programs and
instructions are at present the main driving force in this aspect.

The Factory relies totally on city water supply which is the only source for both production and general use. It
enjoys constant and reliable supply and incoming quality meets with our production requirements.

The Factory uses packaging materials for the finished products which are consistent with and similar to the trade
norm. In sourcing packaging materials, the Group adopts the view that it must be fit for purpose in the first place
and meeting with our specification. Non-toxicity and environmental friendliness are in fact our keen concern. They
are under the constant attention and review of the various production levels of the Factory.

Environment and Natural Resources

As far as the Factory operation is concerned, fresh water is the only key element which is considered to have an
impact on the natural resource. The Group has a clear policy on this. In conjunction with the measures to reduce,
reuse and recycle, the Factory is constantly on the alert to look for ways and means to accomplish reduction,
reuse and recycling goals. In addition, the Factory is clearly driven by the cost saving incentive to reduce its water
consumption which accounts for a fair portion of its production costs. Waste water from the Factory production
is considered to be having impact on the environment as far as the Factory operation is concerned. Reduction,
reuse and recycle measures where appropriate and practicable are the main approaches which the Group would
consider to pursue in the Factory operation in conjunction with our production goals and policy.
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(B) SOCIAL EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Employment

The Group has implemented policies and regulations on labour protection emphasising on legal compliance of
national laws and local stipulations. They cover, but not limited to, compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, health and safety and other
benefits and welfare. They are clearly stated in the employee handbook and employment contracts, which could be
summarised as follows:

(@

()

The Group ensures that the policies and regulations covering a comprehensive range of employment
protection and benefits are in place. They comply with the national labour laws, rules and regulations and
any local requirements which are considered to have significant impact to the Group. The Group recognises
that staff is an important asset to its success and sustainability and commits to providing equal opportunity
to all staffs on recruitment, promotion, compensation and benefits; promoting a harmonious and respectful
workplace. All employments are entered into proper and standardised contract in writing between the
respective staff and the Group. The human resources department is charged with the prime responsibility
and duty to ensure that statutory obligations of the Group are fulfilled and complied with in a timely manner.
All qualified job applications, internal transfers and promotions will receive due consideration with no
discrimination on age, race, colour, religion, gender, sex or disability basis. No breach of labour laws or
labour dispute were recorded both internally and externally.

To ensure a fair and rational human resources structure, the Group has established job qualifications and
requirements specific to each job position within the Group. They are taken as criteria for recruitment,
promotion and transfer. The recruitment and decision making process will involve both the related
department head and the human resources department.

In accordance with the requirements of the laws of Hong Kong and the PRC, where appropriate, the Group
provides and maintains statutory benefits to all qualified staff, including but not limited to mandatory provident
fund, social security insurance, medical insurance, work injury insurance and compensation and statutory
holidays.

Employee remunerations are determined with reference to the prevailing market level in line with their
competency, qualifications and experience. Salary will be paid in cash or where practicable credited to
the employee bank account within the prescribed agreed period at the end of the wage period. No wage
disputes or complaints were recorded.

The Group opens up opportunities for employees to move on in their vertical and horizontal career path.

The Group finds its employee composition natural and normal and detects no anomalies in gender and age.

WAI CHUN MINING INDUSTRY GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2016

27



Health and Safety

The Group undertakes to safeguard the health and safety of its employees. The Employee Handbook sets out
detailed occupational safety policies and procedures. Operation manuals for the respective plants and production
operations contain safety rules and regulations for safe operations. All employees are required to strictly observe
the health and safety policies and to follow safety rules at work and to place safety as their priority over production.

The Group has taken out National Social Securities and Insurance for all qualified employees of the Factory and
employee compensation for employees in Hong Kong in accordance with the statutory requirements of the
respective places. There were no serious injury incidents or disastrous events which could have significant impact
on the production operation of the Factory in the reporting period.

The Group has equipped the Factory and the head office with all the required safety equipment and facilities,
and has passed all the governmental safety inspections. In case of accidents, regardless of minor or serious,
employees are required by the in-house rules to notify their superiors immediately, who will take appropriate
measures to ensure safety is not being compromised.

In-house rules require all injuries or accidents to be promptly and properly dealt with and reported in accordance
with the local or national laws as appropriate. Parallel remedial or compensatory actions arising from safety and
health issues or work injuries are required to be taken where necessary in accordance with the in-house rules. The
Group did not record any claim dispute on compensation or work related injury investigation by the government
officials in the reporting period in Hong Kong and in China.

Development and Training

The Factory provides the required level of training in terms of skills and job knowledge, plant operation and
production know-hows to employees at various levels so that they are able to perform their required job duties in a
competent and capable manner; without risk to their health and safety or damage to plants and operations.

On the job training is also in place to ensure that knowledge and skills are rightly and timely provided to meet
production and staff needs. Employees are encouraged to engage in self-development by taking external training
programs and seminars which the Group may sponsor the cost of such training programs.

Labour Standards

The Group adopts the national standard as its minimum labour standard on labour protection and welfare and is
committed to ensuring its stringent compliance. In addition, the Group adopts a serious view and attaches great
importance in the compliance of statutory duties and obligations as an employer.

Banning the employment of child labour and forced labour are achieved through the recruitment and employment

process at source. The HR department has been fully charged with this statutory duty and is being oversighted by
the senior levels with constant reviews at periodic intervals.
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All job applicants are required to submit their credentials like academic qualifications, professional skill certificates,
references and identity card for verification and record purpose during recruitment.

The Group strictly adheres to the national laws in labour protection to ensure employee health, safety and welfare
during their employment. The Group also pays wages and salaries, benefits, compensation payments and
insurances on time within the prescribed period.

The Group honored all of its obligations towards staff and no labour disputes or litigations were reported for the
period.

Supply Chain Management

The Group opens its purchase acquisitions to all suppliers on a fair and equitable manner. All purchase
transactions are open and transparent. They are subject to the scrutiny of the internal hierarchy supervisions
depending on its value and significance and to the overall scrutiny of the external independent audit checks. Many
of our purchases for general purpose and use are concluded with suppliers in the nearby areas to support the local
economy.

All purchases are executed and recorded in accordance with the in-house rules which predominantly imposes
concern and attaches importance on its fit for purpose, safety and reliability. Other secondary considerations are
price and availability and reputation of the suppliers. Suppliers are chosen based on their continuous ability to
guarantee satisfactory product quantity and quality, reasonable price and timely delivery, and new suppliers are
required to provide relevant certifications/documents and track records.

Quality and standard of the raw materials are crucial and instrumental to our output quality and a stringent
specification stipulation policy has been applied where applicable in the procurement process. Incoming key
materials will be subjected to our own quality assurance check. As far as condition warrants and permits the
Group may impose a condition in the procurement documents to reserve the right to inspect and examine the raw
materials before purchase.

During the reporting period, the Group mainly purchased raw materials crucial to its factory production from
reputable local suppliers with known supply source as far as practicable and possible.

The Group does not foresee its source of supplies to be a potential threat to our factory operation.

Product Responsibilities

The Group sells our products only to local customers. We are committed to providing high quality end products
as we realize that the quality and consistency of our products are critical to our ability to retain our customers
and to expand market shares. Great importance is attached to the safety standard of our products. The Factory

maintains close contacts with our business peers in the trade to keep abreast of the latest product development
and knowledge.
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To guarantee safety and quality of our products, the Group obtained ISO9001-2008 on quality management
certification valid till 24 February 2018, and CNCA/CTS 0010-2008A (CCAA 0005-2014) on food safety
management system certification on starch and starch products production and CNCA/CTS 0020-2008A (CCAA
0014-2014) on food safety management system certification on food and feed additives production.

Policies and procedures are in place to ensure that all customer complaints or concerns are addressed at the
appropriate levels in a timely manner. Our products are labelled in a manner consistent with trade practice and
customer needs. All stipulations for product labelling required by local or overseas laws are strictly adhered to. No
breaches or infringements were reported in the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Group does not foresee its product should give rise to any serious privacy issues.
Anti-corruption

The Group is well aware of the importance of honesty, integrity and fairness in its operations and has in place
an anti-corruption policy. Employees at all levels are constantly reminded in meetings and documents, such as
the staff handbooks of corruption, giving and taking of interests. Staff are required to declare any conflicts of
interests in the execution of their roles. Through the establishment of these rules and regulations, we encourage all
employees to discharge their duties with integrity and comply with the relevant laws and regulations. Transactions
in large monetary sums are processed through bank transactions which require authorised signatories of the
appropriate levels depending on the amount involved. Checks and balances have been installed in the Group
for money transaction activities and are considered effective and adequate. An external independent auditor has
no adverse comment on this aspect. Money laundry should not be our concern and there were no enquiries or
concerns from the government or banking officials.

During the reporting period, the Group recorded no bribery nor corruption charges.

Community Investment

The Group fully understands and appreciates the importance of and the need for community investment. Through
the day to day contact with the community officials and leaders, the Group explores and examines on what and
how the Group can engage in the community. One thing remarkable and fully appreciated by the local community

is that most employees of the Factory come from the nearby villages. The Group is committed to developing more
community investment opportunities in our development plans.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Room 305, Arion Commercial Centre

a4 et B 47 AN 2-12 s Road West, Hong Kong.
CREE R R IA) féiﬁélg;tgﬁ%az-l; BRI S ) 305 5

Tel BEEH: (852) 3103 6980
HLM CPA LIMITED oA

Certified Public Accountants E-mail FE}: info@hlm.com.hk
TO THE MEMBERS OF WAI CHUN MINING INDUSTRY GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEEEXEEEGR AT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wai Chun Mining Industry Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 38 to 105, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 have been prepared
assuming that the Group will continue as a going concern. We draw attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements which indicate that the Group incurred a net loss of approximately HK$42,046,000 for the year ended
31 December 2016 and had a net operating cash outflow of approximately HK$14,734,000, and as at that date, the
Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately HK$63,001,000 and HK$11,833,000 respectively,
and also, the Group’s capital deficiency attributable to owners of the Company was approximately HK$16,190,000.
These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Management’s arrangements to address the going concern issue are also described in
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments
that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.
Key Audit Matters
Revenue recognition

As set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements, revenue recorded for the year ended 31
December 2016 amounted to HK$464,807,000. We
identified revenue recognised as a key audit matter
as revenue recognised is quantitatively significant
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and material revenue
transactions may occur close to the end of the reporting
period.

Share-based payment expenses

As set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, share-based payment expenses recorded
for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to
HK$23,228,000. Significant judgement is required for
determining its valuation.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Qur procedures in relation to revenue recognition
included:

— Carrying out test of control over revenue recognition,
including the timing of revenue recognition.

— Performing detailed testing on a sample of sales
transactions on the recognition of revenue. In doing
S0, we have traced from the ledger back to invoices
and from invoices to ledger.

— Analysing and selecting supporting documents for
testing the sales transactions. We verified the journals
to originating documentation to confirm the entry was
valid.

— Performing cut-off test on revenue recognition across
the year ended.

We found the Group’s revenue recognition in relation to
sales of goods was supported by the evidence that we
gathered.

QOur procedures in relation to management’s valuation of
share-based payment expenses included:

— Evaluation of the independent external valuers’
competence, capabilities and objectivity.

— Assessing the appropriateness of the parameters used
in the valuation.

— Assessing the valuation methodology.

We found the valuation made by management in
assessing the share-based payment expenses to
be reasonable based on the evidence obtained. The
significant inputs have been disclosed in note 36.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Key Audit Matters

Impairment assessments of inventories and
prepayment for inventories

As at 31 December 2016, the Company held
inventories of approximately HK$38,381,000 (2015:
HK$36,036,000) and prepayment for inventories of
approximately HK$4,828,000 (2015: HK$4,631,000).
As described in Note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Judgement is required to
determine the appropriate provisions for the inventories.

Independent Auditor’s Report

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Our procedures in relation to inventory provision included:
— Checking the effectiveness of inventory controls.

— Assessing the consistency of provisioning in line with
policy and the rationale of the recording of specific
provision.

— Attending inventory counts at the year end date.

— Checking on a sample of raw material that invoiced
costs have been correctly recorded and the allocation
of directly attributed costs have been correctly
calculated.

— Testing the provisions calculations and determining
that management appropriately took into account the
ageing profile of inventory.

— Comparing the net realisable value, obtained through a
detailed review of sales subsequent to the year-end to
the cost price of inventories.

— Requesting confirmations for major year end balances.
Where confirmations had not been received, we
sought explanation from management and checking
to invoices, delivery documents and their subsequent
settlement after year end date.

We found the judgements and estimates made by
management in assessing the provision of inventories and
prepayment for inventories to be reasonable based on
evidence obtained.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matters
Impairment assessment of trade receivables

As set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements, impairment loss on trade receivables
recorded at 31 December 2016, which represented
managements estimates of the amounts which are
potentially irrecoverable, amounted to HK$1,942,000
are excluded from the balance of trade receivables.

Management is required to carry out an impairment
test, which is judgmental and may be subjected to
management bias.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment of trade receivables included:

— Assessing and testing on the process used by
the management to develop the estimate for the
impairment of trade receivables.

— Requesting confirmations for major year end balances.
Where confirmations had not been received, we
sought explanation from management and checking
to their sales invoices, delivery documents and their
subsequent settlement after year end date.

— Reviewing the subsequent settlement of trade
receivables which provide evidence of the
reasonableness of the estimate made.

We found the judgements and assumption made by
management in assessing the provision for impairment
of trade receivables to be reasonable based on evidence
obtained.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.

° conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities

within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

HLM CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

HO PAK TAT

Practising Certificate Number: P05215
Hong Kong

21 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Notes

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Impairment loss on trade and bills receivables

Impairment loss on deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Finance costs

21

11

Loss before tax
Income tax expense

12

Loss for the year

13

Loss for the year attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

Loss per share

— Basic

17

— Diluted
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2016
HK$’000

464,807
(452,651)

12,156
1,376
(5,778)
(43,502)
(1,942)
(1,451)
(2,826)

(41,967)
(79)

(42,046)

(39,169)
(2,877)

(42,046)

HK cents

(0.24)

2015
HK$'000

376,808
(374,985)

1,823
953
(3,424)
(16,902)
(3,298)

(4,825)

(19,596)
(6,077)

(25,673)

HK cents

(0.12)

(0.12)



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive expense
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Other comprehensive expense, net of income tax

Total comprehensive expense for the year

Total comprehensive expenses attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests
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2016
HK$’000

(42,046)

(42,895)

(39,602)
(3,293)

(42,895)

2015
HK$'000

(25,673)

(1,286)

(1,286)

(26,959)

(20,252)

(6,707)

(26,959)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2016

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 18 35,334
Prepaid land lease payments 19 33,229
68,563
Current assets
Inventories 20 36,036
Prepaid land lease payments 19 730
Trade and bills receivables 21 23,461
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 22 7,838
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 23 1,669
Bank balances and cash 24 10,605
80,339
Current liabilities
Trade and bills payables 25 57,244 43,663
Accruals and other payables 26 17,121 27,230
Tax liabilities 52 -
Amounts due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary 27 14,561 16,328
Borrowings 28 55,854 53,846
144,832 141,067
Net current liabilities (63,001) (60,728)
Total assets less current liabilities 3,216 7,835
Non-current liability
Loans from the ultimate holding company 29 15,049 26,849
Net liabilities (11,833) (19,014)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2016

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000

Capital and reserves

Share capital — ordinary shares 30 40,677 40,677
Share capital — convertible preference shares S 1,342 -
Reserves (58,209) (67,341)
Capital deficiency attributable to owners of the Company (16,190) (26,664)
Non-controlling interests 4,357 7,650
Capital deficiency (11,833) (19,014)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 105 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 21 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Lam Ching Kui Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 201

6

Attributable to owners of the Company

Convertible Share Non-
Share preference Share Other option Translation Accumulated controlling
Capital shares  premium reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
HK§000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK§'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
At 1 January 2015 39,887 790 184,476 6,906 - 1,864 (240,335 (6,412) 14,357 7,945
Loss for the year = - - - - - (1969)  (19,59%) 6,077) (25,673
Other comprehensive expense
for the year
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations = = = = = (656) = (656) (630) (1,286)
Total comprehensive expense
for the year - - - - - (656)  (195%)  (20,252) 6,707) (26,959
Conversion of convertible
preference shares
At 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016 184,476 (259,931)  (26,664) (19,014)
Loss for the year (39,169)  (39,169) (2877)  (42,046)

Other comprehensive expense
for the year:

Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Shares issued pursuant to the
loan capitalisation

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments

At 31 December 2016

Note:

209,982

(39,169)

(299,100)

(39,602

26,848

23,228

(16,190)

(3,299)

(42,895)

26,848

23,228

(11,833)

Other reserve represents the share of a subsidiary’s share premium arising from the allotment and issue of shares, and deemed

contribution from owners of the Company.

WAI CHUN MINING INDUSTRY GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2016



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Notes

Operating activities
Loss for the year
Adjustments for:
Finance costs 11
Income tax expense 12
Interest income 9
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 18
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 19
Gain on disposal of prepaid land lease payments 9
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on trade and bills receivables 21
Impairment loss on deposits, prepayments and

other receivables
(Reversal of) write-down of inventories 20
Share-based payment expenses 36
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and bills receivables
Increase in deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Decrease in prepayment for acquisition of property,

plant and equipment
Increase in tax liabilities
Increase in trade and bills payables
(Decrease) increase in accruals and other payables
Cash used in operations
Tax paid
Net cash used in operating activities
Investing activities
Interest received
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid land lease payments
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 18

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Net cash used in investing activities
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2016
HK$’000

(42,046)

2,826
79
(144)
3,389
715
286
1,942

1,451
677)
23,228

(8,951)
(3,943)
(6,109)

(2,639)

52
16,211
(9,276)

(14,655)
(79)

(14,734)

1,564
(6,281)
(1,419)

(5,895)

2015
HK$'000

(25,673)

4,825

(64)
3,340
762
(741)

3,298

3,769

(10,473
(12,400
(2,514
(1,305

& E B

671

16,021
3,151

(6,849)
(6,849)

54
69
2,031

(2,742)
(1,669)

(2,257)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016
Notes HK$’000

Financing activities

Interests paid (2,426)
Repayment of borrowings (50,245)
New borrowings raised 55,737

Increase in loans from the ultimate holding company 14,809
Decrease in amounts due to a former subsidiary -
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to a non-controlling

shareholder of a subsidiary (734)

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (3,488)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 10,605
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (653)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Analysis of cash and cash equivalent:
Bank balances and cash 24
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(22,376)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Oriental Success Ventures Limited (“Oriental Success”), which is a
private limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Lam Ching
Kui (“Mr. Lam”), who is the chairman of the Board of Directors and an executive director of the Company. On
2 November 2016, Wai Chun Investment Fund transferred its holding of 100% issued share capital of Chinese
Success Limited to Oriental Success. After completion of the transfer, Oriental Success becomes the ultimate
holding company of the Company. The address of the registered office of the Company is Floor 4, Willow House,
Cricket Square, P.O. Box 2804, Grand Cayman KY1-1112, Cayman Islands and the principal place of business of
the Company is 13/F, Admiralty Centre 2, 18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale of modified starch and other biochemical
products, the trading of athletic and athletic-style leisure footwear, working shoes, safety shoes, golf shoes and
other functional shoes, and general trading.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company. In addition, the functional currencies of certain group entities that operate outside Hong
Kong are determined based on the currency of the primary economic environment in which the group entities
operate.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group incurred a loss of approximately HK$42,046,000 and had a net
operating cash outflow of approximately HK$14,734,000, and as at that date, the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately HK$63,001,000 and HK$11,833,000 respectively, and also, the Group’s capital
deficiency attributable to owners of the Company was HK$16,190,000. These conditions indicate the existence
of material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore, the Group may not be able to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

In order to ensure the Group’s ability to operate as a going concern, the Directors of the Company have been
implementing various measures as follow:

(i) As at 31 December 2016, the Company has undrawn loan facilities of approximately HK$110,112,000
granted by Oriental Success, its ultimate holding company, which will be provided on a sub-ordinated basis,
i.e. Oriental Success will not demand the Company for repayment of such loans until all the other liabilities
of the Group had been satisfied. By way of an assignment of loan agreement dated 2 November 2016, the
outstanding loan amount and loan facilities granted by the previous ultimate holding company Wai Chun
Investment Fund were assigned to Oriental Success under the same terms and conditions;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(i)  In addition to the loan facilities granted by Oriental Success as stated above, the ultimate controlling party
has also undertaken to provide adequate funds to enable the Group to meet its liabilities and to pay financial
obligations to third parties as and when they fall due so that the Group can continue as a going concern and
carry on its business without a significant curtailment of operations for the twelve months from the date of
approving the consolidated financial statement;

(i)  The Company has planned and is in negotiation with potential investors to raise sufficient funds through fund
raising arrangement; and

(iv)  The Directors will continue to implement measures aiming at improving the working capital and cash flows of
the Group including closely monitoring general administrative expenses and operating costs.

The Directors have carried out a detailed review of the cash flow forecast of the Group for the twelve months
from the date of this report, taking into account the impact of above measures, the Directors of the Company
believe that the Group will have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future working capital and other financing
requirements as and when they fall due in the next twelve months from the date of this report, and accordingly, are
satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going concern, adjustments would have to be made to
write down the value of assets to their recoverable amount, to provide for future liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and liabilities to current assets and liabilities respectively. The effects of these potential
adjustments have not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

As set out in the paragraphs above, the Group intends to pursue strategic acquisitions that can enable the
Company to capture new business opportunities in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) market and to
strengthen the revenue and profit fundamentals. The Company has been actively identifying projects with growth
potential for acquisitions or investments and has engaged in discussions with various parties for such acquisitions
or investments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses'

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Clarification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions?

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance

Contracts?®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

HKFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
and HKAS 28 or Joint Venture*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
¥ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
“ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets and impairment
requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All other debt investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair value at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The Directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 may have a material impact of
the Group’s financial statements. However, it is not practical to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Clarification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
The amendments clarify the following:

1. In estimating the fair value of a cash-settled share-based payment, the accounting for the effects of vesting
and non-vesting conditions should follow the same approach as for equity-settled share-based payments.

2. Where tax law or regulation requires an entity to withhold a specified number of equity instruments equal
to the monetary value of the employee’s tax obligation to meet the employee’s tax liability which is then
remitted to the tax authority, i.e. the share-based payment arrangement has a ‘net settlement feature’, such
an arrangement should be classified as equity-settled in its entirety, provided that the share-based payment
would have been classified as equity-settled had it not included the net settlement feature.

3. A modification of a share-based payment that changes the transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled
should be accounted for as follows:

(i) the original liability is derecognised;

(i) the equity-settled share-based payment is recognised at the modification date fair value of the equity
instrument granted to the extent that services have been rendered up to the modification date; and

@iy any difference between the carrying amount of the liability at the modification date and the amount
recognised in equity should be recognised in profit or loss immediately.

The Directors of the Company do not anticipate that the amendments to HKFRS 2 may have a material impact of
the Group’s financial statements.

Except as described above, the Directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of these new

and amendments to HKFRSs will have a material effect on the amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CQO”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial
instruments that are measure at fair value at the end of each reporting period, explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to

the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power to affect its return.

The Group reassess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other
vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;
o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at
previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets or liabilities consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the
original business combination and their share of changes in equity since the date of the combination.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components
of equity including reserves and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
after re-attribution of the relevant equity component, and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture.

Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discount and sales related
taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s

activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have passed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis,
except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
leased asset are consumed.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments represent upfront premium paid for use of land. These payments are stated at cost
and are amortised over the period of the lease on a straight-line basis as an expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under construction as described below), are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than properties under construction) less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s interests.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange difference arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

WAI CHUN MINING INDUSTRY GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2016

55



56

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary difference associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flow (where effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimated of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories, including an appropriate
portion of fixed and variable overhead expenses, are determined on a weighted average basis. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term
highly liquid investment with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Related parties
A related party is a person or that is related to the Group.

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group (which mean that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a member);

(iiy  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and other entity is an associate of the third party;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefits of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vl a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) (“FVTPL”) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into financial assets at FVTPL and loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is either held-for-trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held-for-trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earning on the
financial asset and is included in the “other revenue” line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in note 7(c).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables
and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

WAI CHUN MINING INDUSTRY GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or
o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables, assets
are assessed for impairment on a collective basis even if they were assessed not to be impaired individually.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the
accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
and other receivables are considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Convertible preference shares
Convertible preference shares are classified as equity if it is non-redeemable and any dividends are discretionary.
Dividends on convertible preference shares classified as equity are recognised as distributions within the equity.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables, other payables, borrowings, amounts due to a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and loans from the ultimate holding company) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no
longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is
no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees are measured at the fair value
of the goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or
the counterparty renders the service. The fair values of the goods or services received are recognised as expenses
(unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as assets).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 4, management is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2016 were approximately
HK$35,772,000 (2015: approximately HK$35,334,000). The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 3 years to 20 years and after taking into account of their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method, at the rate of 5% to 33% per annum, commencing from
the date in which the property, plant and equipment are available for use. The estimated useful life that the Group
places the property, plant and equipment into productive use reflects the Directors’ estimate of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of the Group’s property, plant and equipment.

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances for trade and other receivables by assessing the recoverability
based on credit history and prevailing market conditions. This requires the use of estimates and judgements.
Allowances are applied to trade and other receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will
affect the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and thus the impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed. The Group reassesses the impairment allowances at the end of the each reporting period.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables and deposits, prepayments and
other receivables are approximately HK$26,254,000 (2015: approximately HK$23,461,000) and approximately
HK$8,630,000 (2015: approximately HK$7,838,000) respectively, net of accumulated impairment loss of
trade and bills receivables and deposits, prepayments and other receivables of approximately HK$9,438,000
(2015: approximately HK$7,496,000) and approximately HK$7,310,000 (2015: approximately HK$5,859,000)
respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment loss on inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis of the inventories at the end of reporting period,
and identified obsolete and slow-moving inventory items that are no longer suitable for use in production. The
management estimates the net realisable value for such finished goods based primarily on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. The Group carries out an impairment review on a product-by-product basis at the
end of reporting period and provides impairment loss on obsolete items.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of inventories are approximately HK$38,381,000 (2015:
approximately HK$36,036,000), net of write-down of inventories of approximately HK$Nil (2015: approximately
HK$3,769,000).

Deferred tax asset

At 31 December 2016, no deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses of approximately
HK$152,482,000 (2015: approximately HK$151,405,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future assessable profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases where the estimated future assessable profits or
taxable temporary differences are more than those previously estimated, a material recognition of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which the revised estimate takes
place.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners through the optimisation of the debts and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from 2015.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts (which includes amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, borrowings and loans from the ultimate holding company, net of bank balances and
cash) and total assets.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
The Directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically. As part of this review, the Directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on the recommendations of the

Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, sell assets to
reduce debts, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.
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6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Net debt to total assets ratio
The net debt to total assets ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

Debts (Note a) 85,464 97,023
Bank balances and cash (6,464) (10,605)
Net debts 86,418
Total assets (Note b) 148,048 148,902
Net debt to total assets ratio 53.4% 58.0%

Notes:

(a) Debts comprise amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of approximately HK$14,561,000, borrowings of
approximately HK$55,854,000 and loans from the ultimate holding company of approximately HK$15,049,000, as detailed in
notes 27, 28 and 29 respectively.

(b) Total assets include all non-current assets and current assets.

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Categories of financial instruments

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000

Financial assets

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 1,669

Loans and receivables (including bank balances and cash) 35,198
Financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost 150,049 156,561
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other receivables, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, bank balances and cash, trade payables and other payables, bank borrowings,
amounts due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and loans from the ultimate holding company.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include credit risk, market risk (foreign currency risk, interest rate risk) and liquidity risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk management

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
bank balances, included in the consolidated statement of financial position represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties and
the management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade and other receivables
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

Receivables balances should be monitored and managed by management on an ongoing basis to ensure the
Group’s exposure to bad debt is minimised.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as approximately 19% (2015: approximately 41%) and
approximately 53% (2015: approximately 72%) of the total trade and bills receivables which was due from
the Group’s largest customer and the total three largest customers respectively. The Group’s concentration
of credit risk by geographical locations is mainly in PRC, which accounted for approximately 100% (2015:
approximately 95% in PRC) of the trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2016. They have good
historical repayment records and no default in payment.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the counterparties are reputable banks located in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements.

The Group has no other significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spreading over a number of
counterparties.
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management

The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk as most of its monetary assets and monetary liabilities
are denominated in the functional currency of the individual group entity. The management is of the opinion
that the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal. Accordingly, no foreign exchange risk sensitivity
analysis is presented. The significant balance carried in the translation reserve account is occasioned by
the translation of the financial statements of the Group’s subsidiaries into the presentation currency of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group at each reporting date.

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to variable-rate borrowings and cash at bank. It is
the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of interest so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk. The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is minimal.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to loans from the ultimate holding
company. The Group currently does not use any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to fair value
interest rate risk. However, the management will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis
points (2015: 100 basis points) increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2015: 100 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$470,000 (2015: approximately HK$413,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its current obligations when they fall due. The
Group’s management policy is to regularly monitor its current and expected liquidity positions to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meet its operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed
borrowing facilities at all time so that the Group can meet its short-term and long-term funding requirements
and does not breach borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities.

The management will also closely monitor the cash flow generated from operations and the Group’s needs
for different types of external financing and will negotiate for proper facilities and consider proper means of
equity financing as appropriate.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table

are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Liquidity tables

Weighted
average Total
effective  Less than 1 3 months to More than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate month  1-3 months 1 year 1 year cash flows amounts
LE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2016
Trade and bills payables
Other payables
Loans from the ultimate
holding company
Amounts due to a
non-controlling
shareholder
of a subsidiary
Borrowings

150,049
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk management (Continued)
Liquidiity tables (Continued)

Weighted
average Total
effective Less than 1 3months to 1 Morethan 1 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate month 1-3 months year year cash flows amounts
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2015
Trade and bills payables - 9,395 8,484 25,784 - 43,663 43,663
Other payables - 4,834 4416 6,625 - 15,875 15,875
Loans from the ultimate 6.25% = = = 28,527 28,627 26,849
holding company
Amounts due to a = = = 16,328 = 16,328 16,328
non-controling
shareholder
of a subsidiary
Borrowings 5.42% 187 378 12 = 56,085 53,846

14,416 18,273 104,262 28,527 160,478 166,561

The Directors of the Company believe that based on the continuous financing support and undrawn facilities
granted by its ultimate holding company, Oriental Success, which will be provided on a sub-ordinated basis,
the liquidity of the Group will be improved. Therefore, the Directors consider that the Group has sufficient
financial resources to satisfy its working capital requirements and payments of liabilities and its forthcoming
future capital commitments as and when fall due.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair value estimation
Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period on a
recurring basis. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial instruments
are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used).

Fair value
As at 31 December

2016 2015 Fair value Valuation technique
Financial assets HK$’000 HK$'000 hierarchy and key inputs
Financial assets at fair value through 1,669 Level 1 Quoted prices in active
profit and loss market

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no Level 2 or 3 fair value measurements financial
instruments.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 1 during the year.

Except for the financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the Directors of the
Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

8. TURNOVER
Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable for goods sold net of discounts and sales related taxes.
An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as follows:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

Turnover from modified starch and other biochemical products 429,254 292,808
Turnover from trading of footwear 755 6,396

Turnover from general trading 34,798 77,604

Total 464,807 376,808
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OTHER REVENUE

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

Gain on disposal of prepaid land lease payments 741
Bank interest income 54
Reversal of write-down of inventories -
Others 158
Total 953

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) has been identified as the Group’s senior executive management.
The CODM reviews the Group’s internal reporting for resource allocation and assessment of performance.

For management purposes, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Modified starch and other - Manufacture and sale of modified starch and other biochemical products
biochemical products

Footwear = Trading of athletic and athletic-style leisure footwear, working shoes,
safety shoes, golf shoes and other functional shoes

General trading - Trading of electronic parts and components and electrical appliances
The reportable segments have been identified on the basis of internal management reports prepared in accordance
with accounting policies which conforming to HKFRSs and these reports are regularly reviewed by the CODM of

the Company.

Segment (loss) profit represents loss incurred or profit earned by each segment without allocation of other revenue,
central administration costs (including Directors’ salaries) and finance costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Business segments
Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenues and results by reportable and operating segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Modified

starch and

other

biochemical General

products Footwear trading Total
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Segment revenue 429,254 34,798 464,807
Segment results (4,743) (6,131) (10,746)
Other revenue 1,376
Central administration costs (29,771)
Finance costs (2,826)

Loss before tax (41,967)
Income tax expense (79)

Loss for the year (42,046)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Business segments (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Modified

starch and

other

biochemical General

products Footwear trading Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Segment revenue 292,808 6,396 77,604 376,808
Segment results (10,039) (5,361) 343 (15,057)
Other revenue 953
Central administration costs (6,744)
Finance costs (4,825)
LLoss before tax (25,673)
Income tax expense -
Loss for the year (25,673)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Business segments (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities
At 31 December 2016

Modified
starch and
other
biochemical General
products Footwear trading Consolidated
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Assets
Segment assets 145,750 147,735
Unallocated assets 313
Consolidated assets 148,048
Liabilities
Segment liabilities (136,859) (137,215)
Unallocated liabilities (22,666)
Consolidated liabilities (159,881)

Geographical assets
Hong Kong 2,298
Macau =
PRC 145,750

148,048
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Business segments (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
At 31 December 2015

Modified
starch and
other
biochemical General
products Footwear trading Consolidated
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
Assets
Segment assets 144,022 3,111 599 147,732
Unallocated assets 1,170
Consolidated assets 148,902
Liabilities
Segment liabilities (128,411) (8,307) (1,391) (133,109)
Unallocated liabilities (34,807)
Consolidated liabilities (167,916)
Geographical assets
Hong Kong 4,281
Macau 599
PRC 144,022

148,902

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources between segments:

° assets used jointly by reportable segments are allocated on the basis of the revenues earned by individual
segments; and

o liabilities for which reportable segments are jointly liable are allocated in proportion to segment assets.
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10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Other segment information
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Modified
starch and
other
biochemical
products
HK$’000

Additions to property, plant and equipment
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment loss on trade and bills
receivables
Impairment loss on deposits,
prepayments and other receivables
Reversal of write-down of inventories
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

General
trading
HK$000

Footwear
HK$°000

Total
HK$’000

Unallocated
HK$'000

Modified

starch and

other

biochemical General
products Footwear trading Unallocated Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Additions to property, plant and equipment 2,125 17 - - 2,742
Depreciation and amortisation 4,056 46 - - 4,102
Impairment loss on trade and bills receivables 3,298 - - - 3,298
Write-down of inventories 3,741 - - 28 3,769
Loss on disposal of property, plant

and equipment 1 - - _ 1

WAI CHUN MINING INDUSTRY GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2016



78

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information
For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s operations were principally located in Hong Kong
(country of domicile) and PRC with revenue and profits from its operations.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from external customers and non-current assets by
geographical locations:

Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets

2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Hong Kong 35,553 80,755
PRC 429,254 296,053

464,807 376,808

Information on major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2016, included in revenue arising from sales of modified starch and other
biochemical products of approximately HK$429,254,000 are revenue of approximately of HK$109,403,000,
HK$70,119,000 and HK$39,323,000 respectively arising from sales to the Group’s three largest customers. No
other single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group’s sale.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, included in revenue arising from sales of modified starch and other
biochemical products of approximately HK$292,808,000 are revenue of approximately HK$82,023,000 and
HK$62,322,000 and included in revenue arising from general trading of approximately of HK$77,604,000 are
revenue of approximately of HK$74,359,000 respectively arising from sales to the Group’s three largest customers.
No other single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group’s sale.

Information on major suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2016, included in purchases arising from purchases of modified starch and
other biochemical products of approximately HK$455,994,000 are purchases of approximately HK$275,264,000,
HK$23,846,000 and HK$17,630,000 respectively arising from purchases from the Group’s three largest suppliers.
No other single supplier contributed 10% or more to the Group’s purchases.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, included in purchases arising from purchases of modified starch and
other biochemical products of approximately HK$280,925,000 are purchases of approximately HK$155,614,000
and included in purchases arising from general trading of approximately of HK$77,220,000 are purchases of
approximately HK$32,416,000 and 27,326,000 respectively arising from purchases from Group’s three largest
suppliers. No other single supplier contributed 10% or more to the Group’s purchases.
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11. FINANCE COSTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Interest on:
— Bank loans and bank overdrafts
— Loans from the ultimate holding company
— Short-term loan from an independent third party

Total

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
3,317

1,348

160

4,825

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000

The income tax expense comprises:
Current income tax:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Total

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group has no assessable profits in Hong

Kong for both years.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at 25% for both years. Taxation arising in other

jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Macau complementary tax is levied at a fixed rate of 12% on the taxable income above MOP600,000 for both

years (equivalent to approximately HK$567,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss before income tax per the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as follows:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

LLoss before income tax (42,046) (25,673)

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) (6,937) (4,236)

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries in other jurisdiction ()] (1,099)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose 4,978 1,788

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose - (427)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognised (65) 1

Tax effect on tax reduction (5) (24)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 2,623 3,997

Income tax expense for the year

At 31 December 2016, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately HK$154,482,000 (2015: approximately
HK$151,405,000) available to offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams of the Group.

There was no unrecognised deferred tax liabilities, relating to withholding tax that would be payable for
undistributed profits of PRC subsidiaries in both years, as the Directors consider that the timing for reversal
of the related temporary differences can be controlled and such temporary differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future. The total unused loss of these PRC subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 amounted to
approximately HK$14,375,000 (2015: approximately HK$9,360,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging:

Auditor’s remuneration 500 500
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense (Note 20) 452,651 374,968
Impairment loss on trade and bills receivables 1,942 3,298
Impairment loss on deposits, prepayments and other receivables 1,451 -
(Reversal of) write-down of inventories (677) 3,769
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 3,389 3,340
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 286 1
Net exchange loss - 19
Share-based payment expenses 23,228 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 715 762

Staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments and retirement 5,727 5,985
benefit costs)

And after crediting:

Gain on disposal of prepaid land lease payment 741
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14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY
SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)

REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to Directors and chief executive of the Company

during the year were as follows:

Fees

Other emoluments:
Basic salaries, other allowance and benefits in kind
Retirement benefit costs

— Defined contribution retirement plans

Total emoluments
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY
SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued)
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules
and CO, is as follows:

Other emoluments

Basic
salaries,
other Defined
allowance contribution 2016
Directors’ and benefits retirement Total
fees in kind plans emoluments
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Executive Director:
Lam Ching Kui
(Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive
Directors:

Chan Chun Wai, Tony

Hau Pak Man

To Yan Ming, Edmond

Total
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY
SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued)

Other emoluments

Basic
salaries,
other Defined
allowance contribution 2015
Directors’ and benefits retirement Total
fees in kind plans emoluments
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
Executive Director:
Lam Ching Kui
(Chief Executive Officer) - 2,400 18 2,418
Independent Non-executive
Directors:
Chan Chun Wai, Tony 120 - - 120
Hau Pak Man 120 - - 120
To Yan Ming, Edmond 120 - - 120
Total 360 2,400 18 2,778

No director waived any emoluments in the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. No incentive payment
for joining the Group was paid or payable to any directors during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.

The executive director’'s emolument shown above was mainly for his services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group during the years ended 31 December 2016 and

2015.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company or its subsidiaries during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY
SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits during the year (2015: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any termination benefits during the year (2015: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company did not pay consideration to any third parties for
making available directors’ services (2015: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporates and connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there is no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of the directors, or controlled body corporates and connected entities of such directors (2015: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2015: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included one Executive Director of the Company
(2015: one Executive Director), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 14. Details of the remuneration for
the year of the remaining four (2015: four) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of
the Company are as follows:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

Basic salaries, other allowance and benefits in kind 1,290
Retirement benefit costs

— Defined contribution retirement plans 68

Total 1,343

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the directors of the Company whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

2016 2015

Number of Number of

HKS$ individuals individuals
Nil = 1,000,000 4
5,500,001 — 6,000,000 _
4

No emoluments were paid to the Directors of the Company or the remaining four (2015: four) highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during each of
the two years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

16. DIVIDEND
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the Company during 2016, nor has any dividend

been proposed since the end of the reporting period (2015: HK$SNIl).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

17. LOSS PER SHARE
(a) Basic loss per share
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on loss attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$39,169,000 (2015: HK$19,596,000) and the number of 16,270,685,376 ordinary shares (2015: the
weighted average number of 15,956,416,883 ordinary shares) in issue.

2016 2015
Number of Number of
shares shares

Number of ordinary shares (2015: weighted average number
of ordinary shares)

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January Ay (VGHIY (Ol 15 954,685,376

Effect of conversion of convertible preference shares - 1,731,507

Number of ordinary shares (2015: weighted average number of

ordinary shares) at 31 December Ly (NG LRCy (Cll 15,956,416,883

(b) Diluted loss per shares
Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the number of ordinary shares outstanding due to the effect

of all dilutive potential ordinary shares and the Group’s loss attributable to owners of the Company.

The Company has dilutive potential ordinary shares attributable to share options and convertible preference
shares. The calculation of diluted loss per share in the current year does not assume the exercise of the
share options and the conversion of convertible preference shares since their exercise would result in a
decrease in loss per share. Accordingly, the diluted loss per share is same as the basic loss per share.
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold
improvements,  Machinery
Construction furniture and Motor
Buildings  in progress  and fixtures equipment vehicles Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

COST

At 1 January 2015 20,388 4,712 2,885 22,617 378 50,980
Exchange difference 1,172 (248) = (1,315) 22) (2,757)
Additions 25 2,598 - 119 - 2,742
Disposals - - - (223) - (223)
Transfer - 4,072) - 4,072 - -

At 31 December 2015 and

1 January 2016 19,241 2,990 25,270 50,742
Exchange difference (1,217) (164) (1,613) (3,017)
Additions 358 4,351 950 6,281
Disposals (47) - (678) (725)

Transfer - (2,815) 2,815 -

At 31 December 2016 18,335 2,885 955

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

At 1 January 2015 2,438 - 2,803 7,622 180 12,943
Exchange difference (183) - - (525) (12) (720)
Charge for the year 988 - 45 2,271 36 3,340
Eliminated on disposals - - - (155) - (155)

At 31 December 2015 and

1 January 2016 204 15,408
Exchange difference (14) (934)
Charge for the year 34 3,389
Eliminated on disposals - (354)
At 31 December 2016 2,884 224
CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 31 December 2016 14,469 731
At 31 December 2015 15,998 2,990 37 16,157 152 35,334

88 WAI CHUN MINING INDUSTRY GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are depreciated after
taking into account their estimated residual value, using a straight-line method over the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease, or 15-20 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term of the lease, or 20%-33.33%
Furniture and fixtures 20%-33.33%

Machinery and equipment 6.6%-33.33%

Motor vehicles 10%-20%

Construction in progress represents land and building under construction and plant and equipment pending for
installation in the PRC.

19. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000

Carrying amount:

At 1 January 33,959 38,141

Disposal = (1,471)
Exchange difference (2,116) (2,101)
Amortisation (715) (762)
Eliminated on disposals — accumulated amortisation - 152

At 31 December 33,959
Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Current portion 730
Non-current portion 33,229
At 31 December 33,959

Prepaid land lease payments represent prepayments of land use rights premium to the PRC government authority.
The Group’s land use rights are located in the PRC for industrial purpose. The Group’s land use rights are granted
for a period of 50 years and are classified as long-term lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

20. INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Finished goods
Other consumables

Total

2016
HK$’000

2015
HK$’000

5,780
30,194
62

36,036

No (2015: approximately HK$6,546,000) inventories has stated at net realisable value as at 31 December 2016.

Carrying amount of inventories sold
(Reversal of) write-down of inventories

Carrying amount of inventories sold inclusive of write-down

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Bills receivables

Less: Provision for impairment

Total

2016
HK$’000

453,328
(677)

452,651

2016
HK$’000

35,692
(9,438)

2015
HK$’000

371,199
3,769

374,968

2015
HK$'000

30,778
179

30,957
(7,496)

23,461

The Group allows average credit period of 30 to 180 days to its customers. Receivables that were current relate
to customers for whom there was no recent history of default. As at 31 December 2016, the Group has assessed
the recoverability of the receivables past due and made a provision for impairment. The provision for impairment is
made unless the Group has concluded that recovery is remote, in which case the unrecovered loss is written off
against trade and bills receivables and the provision for impairment directly. The Group does not hold any collateral

over these balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables based on the invoice date and net of provision for impairment, as
at the reporting date, is as follows:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

0-30 days 11,149
31-60 days 3,305
61-90 days 2,218
91-180 days 288l
Over 180 days 2,458
Total 23,461

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables are as follows:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 January 4,198
Provision for impairment 3,298
At 31 December 7,496
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables which are past due but not impaired, is as follows:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000

Overdue by:
0-30 days -
31-60 days =
61-90 days =
91-180 days 2,243
Over 180 days 215
Total 2,458

As at 31 December 2016, no (2015: approximately HK$2,458,000) trade receivables was past due but not
impaired. The balances of past due but not impaired of 2015 was related to customers with sound repayment
history and no recent history of default. Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

22. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’'000

Prepayments for inventories 4,631
Other prepayments 2,074
Other receivables 500
Rental and utilities deposits 633
Total 7,838
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

24,

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000

Financial assets, designated as at fair value through profit or loss 1,669

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were issued by a reputable bank in the PRC. The fair value of the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has been determined based on the quoted price from bank at the
reporting date.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
Cash at bank 10,004
Cash on hand 601
Total 10,605

As at 31 December 2016, the balances that were placed with banks in the PRC amounted to approximately HK$
6,067,000 (2015: approximately HK$9,173,000). Remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange
restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0.5% to 3% (2015: 0.5% to 3%) per annum.
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25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

Trade payables 36,210
Bills payables 7,453
Total 43,663

The average credit period on purchases of goods ranges from 30 to 180 days (2015: 30 to 180 days). The
Group has financial risk management policies to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe. The
following is an ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

0-30 days 30,138
31-60 days 3,099
61-90 days 8,258
91-180 days 225
Over 180 days 1,943
Total 43,663

26. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

Payroll and welfare payables 3,019
Accrued operating expenses 6,907
Receipts in advance from customers 15,164
Other tax payables 367
Accrued construction payment 1,162
Others 611
Total 27,230

94 WAI CHUN MINING INDUSTRY GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2016



27.

28.

29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

AMOUNTS DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. The Directors consider that its carrying
amount approximates to its fair value.

BORROWINGS
2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bank loans, secured a 51,276
Loan from an independent third party, unsecured b 2,570
Total 53,846
Notes:

(@ It was secured by a guarantee given by a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and the pledge of the
prepaid land lease payments with carrying amounts of approximately HK$18,554,000 (2015: approximately
HK$21,345,000). All bank loans are denominated in Renminbi with variable interest rate from 4.7% to 6.6%
(2015: 5% to 6.6%) per annum.

(b) Bearing interest at 1% above Hong Kong Prime Rate per annum.

LOANS FROM THE ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The loans were sub-ordinated in nature which were unsecured, interest bearing at 6.25% for both years. By way
of an assignment of loan agreement dated 2 November 2016, the outstanding loan amount and loan facilities from
Wai Chun Investment Fund were assigned to Oriental Success under the same terms and conditions. The ultimate
holding company, Oriental Success, has confirmed that the outstanding balance of its current account at the year
end will not demand the Company for repayment of such loans until all the other liabilities of the Group had been
satisfied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

30. SHARE CAPITAL - ORDINARY SHARES

Number of
shares of
HK$0.0025 each Amount
HK$°000
Authorised:
Balance as at 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015
and 31 December 2016 40,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid:
Balance as at 1 January 2015 15,954,685,376 39,887
Conversion of convertible preference shares 316,000,000 790
Balance as at 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016
and 31 December 2016 16,270,685,376 40,677
The shares issued rank pari passu with other shares in issue in all respect.
31. SHARE CAPITAL - CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES
Number of
convertible
preference
shares of
HK$0.0025 each Amount
HK$’000
Authorised:
Balance as at 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015
and 31 December 2016 816,000,000 2,040
Issued and fully paid:
Balance as at 1 January 2015 316,000,000 790
Conversion of convertible preference shares (316,000,000) (790)
Balance as at 31 December 2015, 1 January 2016 = =
Shares issued pursuant to the loan capitalisation (Note) 536,960,000 1,342
Balance as at 31 December 2016 536,960,000 1,342
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32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

SHARE CAPITAL - CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES (Continued)

The convertible preference shares are non-redeemable, carry no voting right and each of the convertible
preference share is convertible into one ordinary share immediately before the fifth anniversary of the issue date of
convertible shares. The convertible preference shareholder is entitled to receive dividend pari passu with ordinary
shareholders on an as converted basis.

Note:

On 22 January 2016, the Group entered into a loan capitalisation subscription agreement between Chinese
Success Limited, which converted the loans from ultimate holding company approximately HK$26,848,000 as at
31 December 2015 to be 536,960,000 convertible preference shares at the issue price of HK$0.05 per convertible
preference share. The loan and the relevant interests accrued amounting to approximately HK$26,848,000 owing
by the Company to Wai Chun Fund was assigned to Chinese Success Limited by a Deed of Assignment dated 22
January 2016. The loan capitalisation was approved by the Company’s shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 8 April 2016 and 536,960,000 convertible preference shares were issued and allotted to Chinese
Success Limited accordingly.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The employees of PRC subsidiaries are members of central pension scheme organised by PRC municipal and
provincial government authorities in the PRC. The PRC subsidiaries are required to make monthly contributions to
these plans at a fixed percentage of the employee’s basic salary.

The Group also operates a MPF scheme for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss amounting to approximately

HK$79,000 (2015: approximately HK$76,000) represents contribution payable to these plans by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the plans.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

33. OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000

Lease payments in respect of rented premises

paid under operating leases during the year 3,188

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of office premises which fall due as follows:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 3,188
In the second to fifth year inclusive 2,657
Total 5,845

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for its office premises in Hong Kong. Leases and
rentals are negotiated and fixed respectively for an average term of two years.

34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
The Group’s prepaid land lease payments with carrying amount of approximately HK$18,554,000 (2015:

approximately HK$21,345,000) has been pledged to secure the bank loans and general banking facilities granted
to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company,
have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions between the
Group and other related parties are disclosed below.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Transactions with a related parties

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with related parties. The transactions were

carried out at estimated market prices determined by the Directors of the Company.

Name of Nature of
related parties transactions 2016 2015 Interested party  Relationship
HK$°000 HK$'000
Oriental Success Ventures Interest expenses - Lam Ching Kui Director
Limited (Note)

Wai Chun Investment Fund (Note) Interest expenses 1,348 Lam Ching Kui Director

Wai Chun Holdings Group Limited Rental expenses 3,188 Lam Ching Kui Director

Note:

By way of an assignment of loan agreement dated 2 November 2016, the outstanding loan amount and loan
facilities granted by the previous ultimate holding company Wai Chun Investment Fund were assigned to
Oriental Success under the same terms and conditions as disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Outstanding balances with related parties
Details of the Group’s balances with a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and loans from the

ultimate holding company as at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in note 27 and note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Key management personnel remuneration
The remuneration of Directors of the Company and other members of key management personnel during the
year were as follows:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

Short-term employee benefits 4,050
Defined contribution retirement plans 71
Total 4,121

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group effected the following material non-recurring transaction:

On 22 January 2016, the Company agreed to issue 536,960,000 convertible preference shares at the issue price
of HK$0.05 per convertible preference share to the ultimate holding company for the settlement of loans from
ultimate holding company approximately HK$26,848,000 as at 31 December 2015 according to the subscription
agreement dated 22 January 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the shareholders of the Company on 22 July 2015 (the “Share
Option Scheme”), the Company may, at their discretion, invite executive or non-executive director, employee
(whether full-time or part-time), chief executive, substantial shareholder, consultant, professional and other adviser
to take up options.

The subscription price of the Share Option Scheme will be determined at the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date on which an option is granted; (i) the
average closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date on which an option is granted; and (i) the nominal value of a share.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue as at the adoption date. Besides, the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Group in issue shall not exceed 30% of the relevant class of the shares in issue from
time to time. The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.

Options granted under the Share Option Scheme must be taken up within 30 days of the grant upon payment of
HK$1.00 per grant.

As at 31 December 2016, the number of shares in respect of the options granted and remained outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme was 699,639,467, representing 4.3% of the issued shares of the Company. As at the
date of this report, the number of shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 927,429,071,
representing 5.7% of the issued shares of the Company.

Movements of the Company’s share options held by consultants and employee during the year ended 31
December 2016 are set out below:

Number of share options

As at As at
Category of 1 January 31 December
participants 2016 Granted  Exercised 2016 Date of grant  Exercise period Exercise price
HK$
Consultants - 536,932,614 - 536,932,614 12 January 2016 12 January 2016 to 0.0686
11 January 2021
Employee - 162,706,853 - 162,706,853 12 January 2016 12 January 2016 to 0.0686
11 January 2021
Total - 699,639,467 - 699,639,467
Exercise price - 0.0686 - 0.0686
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37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
On 12 January 2016, the Company granted a total of 699,639,467 share options under the Share Option Scheme

to consultants and an employee of the Group. The exercise period of the options is 5 years from the date of grant
of the options, i.e. from 12 January 2016 to 11 January 2021. The options will entitle the grantees to subscribe for
a total of 699,639,467 new shares of HK$0.0025 each at an exercise price of HK$0.0686 per share.

The fair value of the share options determined at the date of grant was calculated by independent valuer using the
binomial option pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

2016
Exercise price (HK$) 0.0686
Share price at the date of grant (HK$) 0.0660
Dividend yield (%) =
Expected volatility (%) 93.245
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.941
Expected life of options (years) 5

The binomial option model has been used to estimate the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based on the Directors’ best estimate. Changes in
variables and assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of the options.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended 31 December 2016 was approximately
HK$23,228,000. The fair value per option granted was HK cents 3.32. The Group recognised share-based
payment expenses of approximately HK$23,228,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016.

NON-CASH TRANSACTION
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has been issued 536,960,000 Convertible preference

shares at the issue price of HK$0.05 per convertible preference share which settled the loans from ultimate holding
company approximately HK$26,848,000 as at 31 December 2015 according to the subscription agreement dated
22 January 2016.
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38. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current asset

Interests in subsidiaries 40 391
Current assets
Inventories 62
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 1,027
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note a) 9,395
Bank balances and cash 79
10,563
Current liabilities
Accruals and other payables 5,046 5,387
Borrowings 2,570 2,570
Amounts due to a subsidiary (Note a) 419 860
8,035 8,312
Net current (liabilities) assets (2,467) 2,251
Total assets less current liabilities (2,029) 2,642
Non-current liability
Loans from the ultimate holding company 29 15,049 26,849
Net liabilities (17,078) (24,207)
Capital and reserves
Share capital — ordinary shares 30 40,677 40,677
Share capital — convertible preference shares 31 1,342 -
Reserves 39 (59,097) (64,884)
Capital deficiency (17,078) (24,207)

Note a: The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and had no fixed term of repayment.

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
21 March 2017 and is signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Lam Ching Kui Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony
Director Director
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40.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016

The Company
Share Other Share option Accumulated
premium reserves reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2015 184,476 62,934 - (294,499 (47,089)
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - (17,795) (17,795)

At 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016

Total comprehensive expense for the year
Shares issued pursuant to the loan capitalisation 25,506
Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments

184,476 (312,294) (64,884)
- (42,947) (42,947)

At 31 December 2016

- 25,506
- 23,228

209,982 (355,241) (59,097)

SUBSIDIARIES

(@) Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the company

Name of company

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued and

fully paid up Proportion of ownership
share capital/ interest and voting power
registered capital held by the Company

Indirectly Indirectly

Wai Chun Incorporation
Limited

Wai Chun Industrial
(HK) Limited

Great Luck Limited

Weifang Century-Light
Biology Science Co.,
Ltd. (“Weifang
Century-Light”)

Weifang Jia You You
Zhi Co., Ltd.
(“Weifang You Zhi")

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Macau

PRC

PRC

Principal activities

2015

1,000 ordinary -
share of HK$1 each

1,000 ordinary 100%
share of HK$1 each

Registered capital 100%
MOP25,000

Registered capital 51%
USD2,929,000

Registered capital 51%
RMB10,000,000

Trading of footwear

Investment holding

General trading

Manufacturing of
modified starch and
other biochemical
products

Manufacturing of
modified starch and
other biochemical
products
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40. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@) Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the company (Continued)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company,

principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests:

Place of
incorporation Proportion of ownership
and principal interests held by non- Loss allocated to non- Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiary  place of business controlling interests controlling interests controlling interests
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Weifang Century-light ~ PRC (1,930) 7,650

and its subsidiary
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40. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests

(Continued)
Note:

Summarised financial information in respect of the Weifang Century-light and its subsidiary that have material
non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts

before intra-group eliminations.

Weifang Century-light

2016
HK$’000

Current assets

80,196

Non-current assets

65,555

Current liabilities

(136,859)

Equity attributable to owners of Weifang
Century-light Group

4,535

Non-controlling interests

4,357

Revenue

430,630

Expenses

(436,501)

Loss and total comprehensive expenses for the year attributable to:
Owners of Weifang Century-light Group
Non-controlling interests

(3,427)
(3,292)

(6,719)

Net cash generated from operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash generated from financing activities

678
(5,896)
2,330

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

(2,888)

41. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to confirm to the current year’s presentation.
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and its subsidiary

2015
HK$'000

75,515

68,507

(128,411)

7,961

7,650

293,762

(306,164)

(6,984)

(6,710)

(13,694)

4,925
(2,240)
6,903

9,588
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Five Years Financial Summary

RESULTS

2016
HK$’000

Revenue

464,807

Loss before tax
Income tax (expense) credit

(41,967)
(79)

Loss for the year from
continuing operations

(Loss) profit for the year from
discontinued operation

Non-controlling interests

(42,046)

(3,293)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Year ended 31 December

2016
HK$’000

Total assets
Total liabilities

Non-controlling interests

(Capital deficiency) equity attributable

to owners of the Company

Loss per share (HK cents)

148,048
(159,881)

(11,833)
(4,357)

(16,190)

2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
376,808 394,116 373,582 380,680

(25,673) (17,693) (29,521) (50,740)
_ (11) (594) 1,211
(25,673) (17,704) (30,115) (49,529)
_ - 677) 5,765
(6,077) (1,820) (8,622) 9,629
Year ended 31 December
2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
148,902 139,935 210,124 380,920
(167,916) (131,990) (178,210) (360,247)
(19,014) 7,945 31,914 20,673
(7,650) (14,357) (22,398) (30,302)
(26,664) (6,412) 9,516 (9,629)
(0.12) (0.10) (0.14) (0.22)
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